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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Stockton is a threz-part frams house in the Greek Revival styla with an

unusually deep temple form central section flanked by one-story wings. In
discussing the tripartite houses, Thomas Waterman cited the elevation of
Stockton as "the fulfillment of the type," despite its "rather diminutive
proportions." Its form resembles the "Design for a Country Villa" in The
Modern Builders Cuide by Minard Lafever. The two-story pedimented central
block, facing east, is three compressed bays wide; it measures 20 feet

across and extends about 60 feet to the rear. The flanking ons-story wings,
two bays wide and one room deep, are coverad by gable roofs running parallel]

to the facade. Ths main block projects only slightly; it is distinguished
by a handsome prostyle tetrastyle Doric portico. The corner boards are
treated as pilasters. Ths dentil cornice of the entablatura carries around
the main block and is repeated on ths wings.

The configuration of the facade of the main block, which is covered
with flush sheathing, is unusual. The only opening at ths first lsvel is
a large well-executed doorway, with sidelights and transom outlined by
symme trically molded architraves with corner blocks. The transom is framed
by a striking Creek key motif'; a central paneled block occurs above the
transom. At ths second level are two windows, located, because of tha
narrownass of the facada, so that the line of their inner edgaes would exien
through ths sidelights of tha doorway. They contain six-ovar-six sash and.
feature quite unusual frames, which are symmetrically molded with cornsr
blocks at upper and lower corners; the lowar blocks rest on traditional

molded window sills. This pattern recurs cn the facades of the wings, which

are covered, like the rest of the house, with plain lapped siding. The
houss rests on a brick cellar with the walls in common hond; the cellar
windows under the facads of the main block are lozenge-shaped. Fach wing
formerly had a single-shouldsr exterior chimney of brick laid in common
bond; only the south one survives.

The main block extends to the rear four bays past the wings, and . a
one -story shed porch carries around all thres sides. Windows here and on
ths rear elevations of the wings have six-over-six sash, with molded frames
and sills. The wall areas under the porch ars flush sheathed, and on ezach
side, the door in the first bay to the rear of the wing, has a molded frame
and simple four-light transom. An interior chimney rises bstween the two
raar bays. The finish appears to be consistent, although the configurati

on
suggests that the Tear section could be an earlier houss, with ths classicaj

gt=Y=td

portico and wings added later

e

The plan of the intericr is unusual, as is consistent with the exterio
appearanca. A large entry hall in the centier section copens inuvo single
rooms in eithsr wing. To tha rear of the hall is a small stair hall, with
a cramped, enclosed stair in 1ts sovthwest cornser. This second hall-- ;
entazred on eithzr side from thz rear porches--gives aczess to th2 rear
saction, which contains wiro largs rooms saparated by the cantral fireplaces
.to eithar side of the fireplacs is anothzsr extarior doqr The szcond-floor

single larze room over the entranca hall Zront ol the stair,
the stair, beginninz in tha front is a n

the neorth sidg, zvd too rooms along
Z heated. Tha hall deeas 10 a lorez
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with a variety of symmetrically molded architraves and corns» blocks. Thas
baseboards are simple, and pansled aprons occur undsr windows. Some doors
have saveral horizontal pansels, others have two long vertical ones. The
mantals are variations of Greek Revival themes. That in the north wing room
has flat, symmetrically grcoved pilaster strips and friezs, with paneled

and blocks, a plain shelf, and a triangular-arched backboard. The south
wing mantel has heavy, symmetrically molded pilasters, carrying an unusual,
robust frieze with a cushion band, supporting a plain shelf. The large rocm
to the rear of the two halls has the flat, symmetrically grooved pilastar
strips and end blocks with a.recassed, gouged floral motif. The finish of
the second floor is simpler, and the two mantels have a wide molded archi-
trave, a plain frieze, and molded shelf. The front section of the basement
shows evidance of being used as living space, for plastersed laths aurv1ve,
dnd thsre is a fireplace served by the south chimney. :

e
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The first-floor finish is consistently plain Greek Revival in character,
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Stockton is the only known example in North Carollna of the trlparti
house type exscuted in the Greek Revival style. Particularly intaresting
are the unusual proportions and the full prostyle tetrastyls portico
(apparently unique among the state's tripartite houses). Built by the
locally prominent Josiah Granbery, probably in the 1840s, it was in the
early twentieth century the home of Robert Welch of the John Birch Sociaty.

Beginning in 1833, Josiah Thomas Granbery (1806-1862) assembled
several tracts of land west of Little Rivar to form a largs plantation.’
It is said to have been named "Stockton" for Commodore Robert F. Stockton
of Mexican War fame. The house was probably eraected in the late 18)0s. . .

Granbery was a prominsnt planter with interests in mercantile and
fishing enterprisss.
in 1857 and was a trustee of Farmington Academy. He also represented -
Perquimans in the House of Commons in 1835 and 1836 and served as councilor
of state 1858-1860. Near his home he gavé land for St. Barnabas HpiSCOpal

Church, of which he was the leading Sponsor.

Early in the Civil War, Granbery served as chairman of the Little

He was president of the Seaboard Agricultural Socisty|

R

River Providence Committee and member of the Vigilance .Committee. Ha -
executed a note to underwrite the equipping of Perquimans's voluntesr
companiss. His son-in-law Tucius J. Johnson (1822-18656), of. the Bandon
Plantation  Johnson family, was a prominent attorney who raised the "John
Harvey Guards,'" served as its first captain and later became a major in
ths 17th Regiment of North Carolina Troops, Gonfederate Statas Army.

Granbery died in 1862, willing Stockton to his ddufh Mary‘Isabella.
Johnson (1827-1869). The effscts of the war and the 1mpoverlshment of the
" estate forced a public sale in 1867, at which Granbvery's widow Sarah Ann

(nee Sawyer) purchased ths land. Mrs. Sarah Ann Granbery died in 1878 and
hser exascutor sold Stockton to William L. E113 Otu of Baltimore, who oﬂred
it from 1881 to 1903.

R. H. Wélch pu:chased Stockton in 1903. (W. D. Nelch ownad a half-
interest 1903-1910). It was the bovhood Home of Robert délcn (born in
Chowan County 1899, graduated University of North Carolina 1916), who

o “founded~the‘Jonn Birch Socizty.  Wekch-moritgaged the property in
1 In 1635 the farm was a subject of rahabilitation sxpaciments. The
. .
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